
 
 

Haldimand-Norfolk
Health and Social Services Advisory Committee

 
July 25, 2022

9:30 a.m.
Council Chambers

Pages

1. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest
2. Additions to Agenda
3. Presentations/Deputations
4. Adoption/Correction of Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes

4.1. Health and Social Services Advisory Committee - June 27,
2022

3

5. Update on Reports
6. Consent Items
7. Staff Reports

7.1. General Manager
7.2. Public Health

7.2.1. Acting Medical Officer of Health Verbal Update
7.2.2. 2021-2022 Healthy Babies Healthy Children Annual

Reconciliation Report, CS-22-067
7

7.3. Social Services and Housing
7.3.1. 10 Year Housing and Homelessness Plan- Year 7:

2021, HSS-22-029
17

7.4. Quality, Planning, Accountability, and Performance
8. Sub-Committee Reports
9. Communications

9.1. Message from the Board of Health Chair 25

9.2. Letter of Support – Response to the Opioid Crisis in Ontario-
Wide

26



9.3. alPHa Information Break- July 2022 30

10. Other Business
11. Closed Session
12. Next Meeting
13. Adjournment

Page 2 of 36



 

 1 

 

 

Haldimand-Norfolk 

Health and Social Services Advisory Committee 

 

June 27, 2022 

9:30 a.m. 

Council Chambers 
 

Present: Kim Huffman, Chris Van Paassen, Ryan Taylor, 

Stewart Patterson, Tony Dalimonte, Bernie Corbett 

  

Also Present: Christina Lounsbury, Heidy VanDyk, Syed Shah, 

Stephanie Rice, Lori Friesen, Alexis Wynveen, Dr. 

Matthew Strauss, Jaimie Hagen 

  
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

1. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest 

2. Additions to Agenda 

3. Presentations/Deputations 

4. Adoption/Correction of Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 

4.1 Health and Social Services Advisory Committee - May 30, 2022 

Moved By: Chris Van Paassen 

Seconded By: Bernie Corbett 

The Minutes of the Health and Social Services Advisory Committee 

meeting dated May 30, 2022, having been distributed to all Committee 

Members and there being no errors reported, they were there upon 

declared adopted and sign by Chair Dalimonte. 

Carried. 

 

Page 3 of 36



 

 2 

5. Update on Reports 

Heidy VanDyk-Ellis, Acting General Manager, advised that all reports from the 

May 30, 2022 Advisory Committee Meeting were approved at council as 

presented. 

6. Consent Items 

7. Staff Reports 

7.1 General Manager 

7.2 Public Health 

7.2.1 Acting Medical Officer of Health Update 

Acting Medical Officer of Health Dr. Matt Strauss spoke to his 

written update about how COVID-19 pandemic being over.   

Monkeypox has made a one appearance in Haldimand-Norfolk.  

Two hundred cases have been identified in Canada and of which 

thirty-three of these are in Ontario. 

Dr. Strauss has provide an update that our Health Unit is preparing 

strategies to manage monkeypox.   

Moved By: Ryan Taylor 

Seconded By: Chris Van Paassen 

Carried. 

 

7.2.2 Immunization of School Pupils Act Update (ISPA)- HSS-22-020 

Moved By: Ryan Taylor 

Seconded By: Chris Van Paassen 

THAT the Information Memo regarding the current situation report 

on local compliance with the Immunization of School Pupils Act be 

received as information. 

Carried. 

 

7.3 Social Services and Housing 

7.3.1 Canada Ontario Community Housing Initiative (COCHI) and 

Ontario Priorities Housing Initiative (OPHI) Funding Allocation, 

2022-2023, HSS-22-027 

Page 4 of 36



 

 3 

Moved By: Bernie Corbett 

Seconded By: Ryan Taylor 

THAT Staff Report HSS 22-027, Canada Ontario Community 

Housing Initiative (COCHI) and Ontario Priorities Housing Initiative 

(OPHI) Funding Allocation, 2022-2023, be received as information;  

AND THAT Council accept the COCHI funding in the amount of 

$396,139 and the OPHI funding in the amount of $538,800; 

AND THAT Council authorize the Mayor and Clerk to sign the 

required transfer payment agreement with the Ministry of Municipal 

Affairs and Housing; 

AND THAT Council approve the per program funding allocations as 

outlined in this staff report; 

AND FURTHER THAT the COCHI and OPHI Investment Plan 

containing the per program allocations be submitted to the Ministry 

of Municipal Affairs and Housing. 

Carried. 

 

7.3.2 Haldimand Norfolk Housing Corporation Regeneration Master 

Plan – Disposal of Property Request, HSS-22-028 

Moved By: Bernie Corbett 

Seconded By: Ryan Taylor 

THAT Council receive staff report HSS-22-028, Haldimand Norfolk 

Housing Corporation Regeneration Master Plan – Disposal of 

Property Request, as information; 

Carried. 

 

Moved By: Bernie Corbett 

Seconded By: Ryan Taylor 

AND THAT Norfolk Council, as Consolidated Municipal Services 

Manager (CMSM), approve the Haldimand Norfolk Housing 

Corporation’s report “Haldimand Disposal of Singles and Semi’s 

Strategy”, as is appended to this staff report; 

Page 5 of 36



 

 4 

AND THAT once Service Manager consent is received, the Acting 

General Manager of Health & Social Services provide the required 

communication to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing;  

AND FURTHER THAT Haldimand County and the Haldimand 

Norfolk Housing Corporation are notified once Service Manager 

consent and Ministerial notification is completed for the sale of the 

subject properties. 

Carried. 

 

7.4 Quality, Planning, Accountability, and Performance 

8. Sub-Committee Reports 

9. Communications 

9.1 Toronto Board of Health Response to COVID-19 - April 2022 Update 

10. Other Business 

11. Closed Session 

12. Next Meeting 

12.1 Monday July 25, 2022 

13. Adjournment  

 

 

 

Page 6 of 36



 
 

Board of Health Meeting – September 06, 2022 

Advisory Committee Meeting – July 25, 2022 

Subject:  2021-2022 Healthy Babies Healthy Children Annual 
Reconciliation Report 
Report Number:  CS-22-067 
Division: Corporate Services 
Department:  Financial Management and Planning 
Purpose:      For Decision
 

 

Recommendation(s): 

 
THAT Report CS-22-067 2021-2022 Healthy Babies Healthy Children Annual 
Reconciliation Report be received as information; 
 
AND THAT the certification, together with the 2021-2022 Transfer Payment Annual 
Reconciliation, be received and approved. 
 

Executive Summary: 

 
Annual funding is provided for the Healthy Babies Healthy Children Program from the 
Ministry of Children, Community and Social Services (MCCSS).  As a final step of the 
Transfer Payment Business Cycle, it is a requirement that a year-end reconciliation is 
completed. This year-end reconciliation compares the ministry’s approved funding with 
the recipient’s year-end audited actual information to identify if funding is due to or owed 
by the ministry, and is required to be signed by the Board of Health for submission.  
 
For 2021-2022 operations $186,146 is owed to MCCSS, this underspend of ministry 
funding is the result of program operations being impacted by the pandemic. These 
funds have been set up as a liability to recovered by the ministry, and will not result in a 
financial impact to the Counties. 
 

Discussion:  

 
Healthy Babies Healthy Children Program 
 
The Healthy Babies Healthy Children (HBHC) Program provides services during the 
prenatal period and to families with children from birth up to their transition to school 
using targeting program approaches with a universal screening opportunity at time of 

Page 7 of 36



birth. The program intends to optimize newborn/child healthy growth and development, 
reducing health inequalities for families receiving services.   
 
HBHC runs on a fiscal basis, and this reconciliation is related to the fiscal year ending 
March 31, 2022.  
 
Annual Reconciliation Reporting Requirement  
 
As mentioned in the executive summary, the Ministry’s transfer payment business cycle 
requires that the annual reconciliation report be completed for the HBHC program. This 
year-end reconciliation compares the ministry’s approved funding with the recipient’s 
year-end audited actual information to identify if funding is due to or owed by the 
ministry, and is required to be signed by the Board of Health for submission. 
 
This reconciliation process has been completed in the past; however, the requirement 
for the Board of Health’s approval is new for the 2021-2022 fiscal year.  
 
The funding allocation provided by MCCSS for 2021-2022 is 100% funding, up to a cap 
of $892,061.  The level of funding received from MCCSS has remained unchanged over 
the last number of years while operating expenditures continue to rise, and as such has 
resulted in the program to be operating at an expense level over the cap. Within the 
2021-2022 HBHC budget, Haldimand and Norfolk Counties were budgeted to fund 
$50,900, which resulted in total estimated net expenditures for the program of $943,000 
(rounded). 
 
As with many program areas, COVID-19 had a material impact on the operations within 
the HBHC Program in 2021-2022. This resulted in eligible expenditures being lower 
than the approved funding allocation, as demonstrated in Table 1 below. 
 
Table 1: HBHC Approved Funding compared to Eligible Expenses, 2021-2022  
 

Cost/Revenue Item Amount ($) 

Approved Ministry Funding 892,061 

Eligible Expenditures 705,915 

Funding Owing to MCCSS $186,146 

 
Table 1 demonstrates that a total of $186,146 is owing to MCCSS based on lower 
program expenditures compared to the capped funding.  
 
The main drivers of the underspending in the 2021-2022 fiscal year include:  

1. Lower Salaries and Benefits – Staffing vacancies, partially driven by staff 
temporarily redeployed to COVID-19 within the HNHU. 

2. Lower Travel & Communication – Largely due to modified programming offered 
during the pandemic. 

Page 8 of 36



3. Lower Allocation of Central Administration – Operations from QPAP and HNHU 
Admin were focused on pandemic related response, which resulted in lower 
attributable costs to the HBHC program.  

 
As part of this annual reconciliation report, the following certification is required:  
 

“I hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the financial data in the 
Transfer Payment Annual Reconciliation to which this certification is attached, is 
true, correct, agrees with the books and records of the organization and has 
been prepared in accordance with the Technical Instructions and ministry 
financial policies provided by the Ministry of Community and Social Services and 
the Ministry of Children and Youth Services.” 

 
There are a number of ways in which staff ensure the certification is met during the 
preparation of reporting: 

1. The financial information is prepared by Financial Management and Planning 
staff, which is compiled from information in the County’s financial system. As part 
of compiling the information, a review is completed of the technical instructions 
and ministry financial policies, as well as transactions posted to the HBHC 
program. After information is pulled into the format required by the Ministry, the 
final information presented in the report is tied back to the County’s financial 
system to ensure the data is complete and accurate.   

2. The financial information is then reviewed by a Supervisor or Manager within the 
Financial Management and Planning area to ensure accuracy, and is checked 
back to the source to ensure alignment with the County’s financial records.  

3. The report is subsequently provided to the Treasurer for a high level review, 
where oddities or unexpected results are discussed, and for signing off. After 
final approval is received by the Treasurer, the report is then submitted to the 
ministry.  

4. Annually, the County completes Audited Financial Statements, which also 
provides assurance of the County’s financial records.  

 
As such, staff believe the certification from the Ministry has been met. 
 

Financial Services Comments: 

 
Norfolk County 
 
The Approved 2021 and 2022 Levy Supported Operating Budgets include the budget 
allocations for the eligible expenditures reported within the 2021-2022 HBHC Annual 
Reconciliation Report.  Operations for the fiscal year were within the overall operating 
budgets for the County. 
 
The funds owing to the Ministry have been set up as a liability on the Audited Financial 
Statements, and as such, no future financial implication is anticipated to occur due to 
the amount owing to MCSS.  

Page 9 of 36



 
 
 
Haldimand County 
 
Haldimand Finance staff have reviewed this report and agree with the information 
provided by Norfolk Financial Services. 
 
 
  Interdepartmental Implications:  
 
Norfolk County 
 
 
 
Haldimand County 
 
No additional comments.  
 

Consultation(s): 

 
Michael Vansickle, Senior Financial Analyst – Health and Social Services; Syed Shah, 
Acting Director, Public Health 
 

Strategic Plan Linkage:  

 
This report aligns with the strategic priority to “Build Solid Foundations”. 
 
Explanation:  
By reviewing and approving the annual operating results for the Healthy Babies Healthy 
Children Program the Board is assuring oversight and accountability for the County’s 
finances. 
 

Conclusion: 

 
Approval of this report will ensure the last step in the Transfer Payment Business Cycle 
is complete for the HBHC program year 2021-2022. Overall, $186,146 is owed to 
MCCSS, a result of program operations being impacted by the pandemic. These funds 
have been set up as a liability to recovered by the ministry, and will not result in a 
financial impact to the Counties. 
 

Attachment(s): 

 

 Attachment 1: Transfer Payment Annual Reconciliation 
 

Approval: 

Page 10 of 36



 
Approved By: 
Shelley Darlington 
General Manager, Corporate Services  

 

 
Reviewed By: 
Heidy VanDyk 
Acting General Manager, Health and Social Services  
 
Reviewed By: 
Kathy Laplante 
Treasurer and Director, Financial Management and Planning  
 
Prepared By: 
Kathryn Fanning 
Manager, Strategic Financial Planning and Reporting  
 
 
  

Page 11 of 36



MINISTRY OF CHILDREN, COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES
TRANSFER PAYMENT ANNUAL RECONCILIATION 

Service Provider / Delivery Agent: Norfolk
For The Fiscal Year Ended:  March 31, 2022

Contract Category: MCCSS Budget Package 2021-22 GenericTPBP
Service Contract Number: 1-1651584306

CERTIFICATION BY TRANSFER PAYMENT RECIPIENT

Signature of Service Provider / Delivery Agent Authority

Name of Service Provider/Delivery Agent Authority Title of Service Provider/Delivery Agent Authority

Date (dd/mm/yy)

VERIFICATION BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The above certification, together with the Transfer Payment Annual Reconciliation, was received and approved by:

the Board of Directors on the          ________________     day of  _____________ , _____________.

                 
Chairperson of the Board of Directors:

Signature

Name of Chairperson or Designate

Title

I hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the financial data in the Transfer Payment Annual Reconciliation to which this certification is attached, is 
true, correct, agrees with the books and records of the organization and has been prepared in accordance with the Technical Instructions and ministry financial 
policies provided by the Ministry of Community and Social Services and the Ministry of Children and Youth Services. 

Kathy Laplante Treasurer

7/31/2022

Page 12 of 36



Program Component with Financial Flexibility Transfer
Lead Region / Branch for TPA: Integration and Program Effect Branch Integration and Program Effect Branch
Contract Category: MCCSS Budget Package 2021-22
Agency Name Norfolk

Budget Case ID 2021-02-1-1570398014
Agency ID 299 Contract ID 1-1651584306 PART I: Eligibility

Regions and Branches
Program 

Grouping Code
Program Component

Total Approved 
MCCSS Fiscal 
Component 
Allocation 

(A)

Total Eligible 
Component 
Expenditures
Or Segmented 

Expenses
(B)

Component 
Surplus

(C) = (A) ‐ (B) 
when (C) is 
Positive

Component 
(Deficit)

(D) = (A) ‐ (B) 
when (D) is 
Negative

Check Financial Flexibility Eligibility per 
Program Grouping

Transfer of Eligible 
Component 

Surplus

(Please enter all 
numbers as positive 

number from the 
Surplus in C)

Transfer of Eligible 
Component 

Deficit

(Please enter all 
numbers as positive 

number from the 
Deficit in D)

Transfer Type Choice Explanation
1) N/A: No transfer conducted for a Program 
Component.
2) Realignment: Regular Financial Flexibility transfer 
conducted within the Program Grouping parameters 
stated in the “Program Grouping” tab. 
3) COVID-19: the transfer to any funding line within 
the SAME Ministry is due to COVID-19 impacts and 
activities

Integration and 
Program 
Effectiveness Branch 
(IPEB)

E532 Healthy Child 
Development 2021-22 892,061$ 705,915$ 186,146$ -$ 

YES, Financial Flexibility is eligible for the 
Program Components under this SAME Program 
Grouping Code.

-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 

892,061$           705,915$           186,146$           -$                  -$                             -$                          

Balanced

PART II: Financial Flexibility Transfers

Page 1 of 2Page 13 of 36



Program Component with Financial Flexibility Transfer
Lead Region / Branch for TPA: Integration and Program Effect Branch Integration and Program Effect Bran
Contract Category: MCCSS Budget Package 2021-22
Agency Name Norfolk

Budget Case ID 2021-02-1-1570398014
Agency ID 299 Contract ID 1-1651584306

Regions and Branches
Program 

Grouping Code
Program Component

Total Approved 
MCCSS Fiscal 
Component 
Allocation 

(A)

Total Eligible 
Component 
Expenditures
Or Segmented 

Expenses
(B)

Component 
Surplus

(C) = (A) ‐ (B) 
when (C) is 
Positive

Component 
(Deficit)

(D) = (A) ‐ (B) 
when (D) is 
Negative

Integration and 
Program 
Effectiveness Branch 
(IPEB)

E532 Healthy Child 
Development 2021-22 892,061$ 705,915$ 186,146$ -$ 

-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 
-$ -$ 

892,061$           705,915$           186,146$           -$                  

Notes for Transfer
Please indicate the dollar value and program component 

were transferred to and from. 
For COVID-19 transfers, please indicate reason and usage 

of funds.

Revised MCCSS 
Funding (Approved 
Ministry Funding +/- 
Financial Flexibility 

Transfers) Subject to 
ministry review and 

approval

Actual MCCSS 
Funding 

Payments 
Received - 

Current Year

OVERfunded UNDERfunded

705,915$                       892,061$           186,146$           -$                   

-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   
-$                               -$                   -$                   -$                   

705,915$                       892,061$           186,146$           -$                   
 Total Net 
Surplus 186,146$           

PART III: Calculate Net Surplus, if any

Page 2 of 2Page 14 of 36



Audited Financial Statement Reconciliation

Organization Name: Norfolk

LINE
400 TOTAL GROSS REVENUES PER AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 705,915$                

401 LESS: Other Revenue (excluding MCCSS) (i.e. funding from other sources not related to ministry services) -$                        
402 Adjustments for Revenues from Ministry(ies) Funding calculation 
403 Less: Non Retainable Revenues
404 Specify (e.g. Expenditure Recoveries) -$                        
405 Specify (e.g. Offsetting Revenues ) - CEWS Revenue -$                        
406 Specify (e.g. Specific Operating Donations ) -$                        
407 Specify (e.g. Inter-Agency Chargebacks) -$                        
408 Less: Amortization of Deferred Revenue -$                        
409 Less: Other (specify)_MCCSS Grant Base Funding received (not part of Generic Contract)_____________________ -$                        
410 Less: Other (specify)______________________ -$                        

Subtotal -$                        
411 Add: One-Time Capital Expenditures Approved & not included in Revenue
412 Add: Other (specify)______________________ -$                        
413 Add: Other (specify)______________________ -$                        
414 Subtotal -$                        

415 Total Revenue Reported (Line 400 - Line401 - Line 404 to Line 410 + Line 414) 705,915$                
 

420 Total Approved Ministry Funding 892,061$                
(Lines 415 and 420 should equal)

430 Variance (186,146)$               

440 TOTAL GROSS EXPENDITURES PER AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 705,915$                

441 LESS: Other Expenditures (excluding MCCSS) (i.e. expenditures from other services not related to ministry services) -$                        
442 Adjustments for Inadmissible Expenditures related to Ministry Funded Programs
443 Less: Accruals (Payables greater than 30 day i.e. Vacation/Sick Accrual) -$                        
444 Less: Appropriations -$                        
445 Less: Amortization on Capital Assets -$                        
446 Less: Donations to Individuals or Organizations -$                        
447 Less: Fundraising Costs -$                        
448 Less: Loans to Clients or Staff -$                        
449 Less: Retainer Fees -$                        
450 Less: Provisions for Bad Debt -$                        
451 Less: In Kind -$                        
452 Less: Other (specify)_Expenditures for MCCSS Grant Base Funding (not part of Generic Contract)__________________ -$                        
453 Less: Other (specify)______________________ -$                        

Subtotal -$                        
LESS: Other Adjustments

Page 1 of 2Page 15 of 36



455 Less: Expenditure Recoveries/ Offsetting Revenues -$                        
456 Less: Other (specify)______________________ -$                        
457 Less: Other (specify)______________________ -$                        

Subtotal -$                        

460 ADD: Adjustments for Admissible Expenditures, attach prior approval documentation 
461 Add: One-Time Capital Expenditures Approved & Capitalized -$                        
462 Add: Other (specify)______________________ -$                        
463 Add: Other (specify)______________________ -$                        

Subtotal -$                        
 

470 Total Surplus/(Deficit) reported in Audited Financial Statements -$                        
475 Total Ministry (MCCSS) Eligible Expenditures reported in the Audited Financial Statements 705,915$                

480 Total Eligible Expenditure 705,915$                

490 Variance -$                        

Agency explanation:
Due to COVID-19 operating impacts, the HBHC program was underspent in the 21/22 operating year. The underspend from the 
Ministry allocation was set up as an amount owing in the Financial Statements, and this amount owing has been listed as a current 
liability on the statements. 
Our Audited Financial Statement are from January 1 to December 31 2021.  The surplus of $186,146 for the Heathy Families 
component was incurred during the period of January 1 2022 to March 31 2022.  This surplus will be reflected in our Audited 
Financial statements for January 1 to December 31, 2022.

491 Retained Earning -$                        
492 Total Assets -$                        
493 Total Debt -$                        
494 Operating Cash Flow -$                        
495 Current Assets -$                        
496 Current Liabilities 186,146$                
497 Total Revenue -$                        
498 Total Expenditures (Before Extraordinary) -$                        
499 Total Extraordinary -$                        

Page 2 of 2Page 16 of 36



 
 

Council Meeting – September 13, 2022 

Advisory Committee Meeting – July 25, 2022 

Subject:  10 Year Housing and Homelessness Plan- Year 7: 2021 
Report Number:  HSS-22-029 
Division: Health and Social Services 
Department:  Social Services & Housing 
Purpose:      For Decision
 

 

Recommendation(s): 

 
THAT Staff Report HSS 22-029 10-Year Housing and Homelessness Plan Year 7, be 
received as information; 
 
AND THAT staff be directed to forward the 10-Year Housing and Homelessness Plan – 
Year 7 Report to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing in accordance with the 
Housing Services Act, 2011; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT staff be directed to post the 10-Year Housing and Homelessness 
Plan – Year 7 Report on the appropriate link of the Health and Social Services Division 
website. 
 

Executive Summary: 

 
In accordance with the Housing Service Act, 2011, Consolidated Municipal Service 
Managers are required to have a 10-Year Housing and Homelessness Plan, and are 
further required to provide annual updates to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and 
Housing (MMAH).  The purpose of this report is to present the Year 7 plan update and 
to request that Council provide direction to staff to submit this update to MMAH.  
 

Discussion:  

 
The Housing Services Act, 2011 (Act) is Provincial legislation that governs the provision 
of social housing within Ontario.  The Act has the primary purpose of ensuring the 
provision of community based planning and delivery of housing and homelessness 
services.  The legislation identifies that it is a matter of provincial interest that there be a 
system of housing and homelessness services that works within the framework of 12 
identified functions.  The Act also identifies that each Service Manager shall have a plan 
to address housing and homelessness. 
 

Page 17 of 36



 
Housing Vision: Communities in Haldimand and Norfolk Counties are complete, 
inclusive and interconnected communities which have safe, adequate and appropriate 
housing and support services for all residents to live with dignity. 
 
Housing Goals: 

1. To encourage a broad range of dwelling types and tenures which meet the 
needs of current and future residents of Haldimand and Norfolk Counties. 

2. To ensure there is an adequate and appropriate supply of rental housing for 
households with low incomes and priority population groups. 

3. To ensure there are sufficient options for housing with supports to facilitate 
aging in place and for people who require supports to live with dignity and as 
independently as possible. 

4. Ensure a person-centred housing, homelessness and support system is in place 
where all housing and homelessness service providers are working in 
collaboration so that everyone  who needs help is able to access it in a timely 
manner and functional zero end to homelessness is achieved. 

 
Each goal has corresponding actions.  Staff have moved forward with actions wherever 
possible or where Ministry or program changes are required.  Staff are working with 
several housing providers on new and ongoing projects in both Haldimand and Norfolk 
to increase affordable housing in our communities.  Staff are also working toward lunch 
and learn events for community members and partners to engage and provide updates 
on our progress and future goals.     
 

Financial Services Comments: 

 
Norfolk County 
There are no direct financial implications within the report as presented.  The 10-year 
housing and homelessness plan goals are worked towards and achieved based on 
programs and funding identified within the annual Council approved budget. 
 
The Approved 2022 Levy Supported Operating Budget includes $9,495,300 for Housing 
Services, funded by the MMAH ($5,729,200), Norfolk ($2,735,600) and Haldimand 
($1,030,500) counties.  MMAH programs remain 100% funded.  Administration costs 
are shared between the province and municipalities based on the annual maximum 
funding allocation from programs made available to offset these expenditures. 
 
Haldimand County 
 
Haldimand Finance staff have reviewed this report and agree with the information 
provided by Norfolk Financial Services.   
 
 
 
 

Page 18 of 36



  Interdepartmental Implications:  
 
Norfolk County 
 
 
Haldimand County 
 
Haldimand staff had reached out to Social Services and Housing (Norfolk) staff 
regarding Goal 2, noting that there is a substantive increase in the waitlist year over 
year.  Norfolk has confirmed that the percentage increase is related to COVID, income 
and rent increases all while social assistance has been frozen since 2018.   Additionally, 
there has been an increase in applications for rent geared to income, making it more 
challenging to afford available housing.  
 
The information contained in this report, including a growing waitlist further supports 
Haldimand County Council’s desire to implement an affordable and social housing 
strategy.   
 

Consultation(s): 

 
The Acting Director of Social Services and Housing consulted with the Supervisor, 
Building, to complete the table in the attached document.  
 

Strategic Plan Linkage:  

 
This report aligns with the 2019-2022 Council Strategic Priorities “Foster Vibrant, 
Creative Communities”. 
 
Explanation:  
 
In accordance with the Housing Service Act, 2011, Consolidated Municipal Service 
Managers are required to have a 10-Year Housing and Homelessness Plan, and are 
further required to provide annual updates to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and 
Housing.    
The goals and actions outlined in the plan are meant to provide a framework for staff to 
use in decision making in addressing housing needs in our communities.   
 

Conclusion: 

 
 

Attachment(s): 

 

 Housing and Homeless Plan Reporting on Progress- Year 7: 2021 
 
 

 

Page 19 of 36



Approval: 

 
Reviewed and Approved By: 
Heidy VanDyk 
Acting General Manager, Health and 
Social Services 
For more information, call:  
519-426-6170 ext. 3120 

 
 
 
  
 

 
Prepared By: 
Stephanie Rice 
Acting Director, Social Services and Housing  
For more information, call: 
519-426-6170 ext. 3122 
 
 
 
  

Page 20 of 36



HALDIMAND AND NORFOLK HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS PLAN 1  

 

HALDIMAND AND NORFOLK 

10-YEAR HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS PLAN 

 
Year 7 Report 

2021 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Health and Social Services Division Social Services and Housing Department 12 Gilbertson Drive 

PO Box 570 

Simcoe ON N3Y 4N5 

 
Telephone: 519-426-6170 

Fax: 519-426-9974 

Website: www.hnhss.ca 

Providing Services to Haldimand and Norfolk Counties 

Page 21 of 36

http://www.hnhss./


HALDIMAND AND NORFOLK HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS PLAN 2  

 

Reporting on Progress 

Measuring and reporting on progress is important to ensure the Plan remains relevant and efforts are focused on the greatest need in Haldimand and Norfolk. The following 

reporting template for progress on the updated Housing and Homelessness Plan includes targets for each of the key directions and indicators to measure progress. 

 
 
 

 

Goal 1: 

To encourage a broad range 

of dwelling types and 

tenures which meet the 

needs of current and future 

residents of Haldimand and 

Norfolk Counties. 

• Increase of 15%15 in new dwellings which 

are appropriate for smaller households 

• Rental vacancy rate of 3% in both 

Haldimand and Norfolk Counties 

• Increase in secondary suites 

• Decrease of 10% in the proportion of 

homes requiring major repairs 

• Increase in housing developments which 

meet Passive House, LEED, or other 

environmental sustainability standards 

• Residential building permits by dwelling 

type 

• Residential building permits by tenure (i.e. 

ownership and rental) 

• Purpose-built rental housing vacancy 

rates 

• Building permits for secondary suites 

• Proportion of dwellings requiring major 

repairs updated every five years based on 

Statistics Canada Census data 

• Residential building permits for dwellings 

with environmental sustainability features 

which go beyond the requirements of the 

Ontario Building Code 

2021 
Building 
Type 

 

Dwelling Units 
Created 

SFD 223 

SFD ACC 6 

SFD ADD 1 

SFD ALT 3 

VCHNEW 10 

VCHALT 1 

MRES 86 

MRES ACC 0 

MRES ALT 9 

COM ALT 5 

Total 344 

 

Note: See Acronym definitions at end of document 

Goal 2: 

To ensure there is an 

adequate and appropriate 

supply of rental housing for 

• Increase in the supply of rental housing 

which is affordable to households with low 

incomes 

• Number of affordable housing units built 

based on planning applications and 

funding applications 

51 units of supportive housing added in Norfolk, pending 
occupancy.  15/51 units currently open 

 
9 units of supportive housing added in Haldimand, pending 
occupancy 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 Goals    Measures Annual Progress 

Page 22 of 36



HALDIMAND AND NORFOLK HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS PLAN 3  

 

Housing Goals Outcomes and Targets Measures Annual Progress 

households with low incomes 

and priority population 

groups. 

• Decrease of 50% in the number of 

applicants on the waiting list for 

subsidized housing16 

• Decrease of 20% in the number and 

proportion of households with low 

incomes spending 50% or more of their 

income on housing costs 

• Number of applicants on the waiting list 

for subsidized housing 

• Number and proportion of households 

with low incomes spending 50% or more 

of their income on housing costs (to be 

updated every five years based on the 

Statistics Canada Census) 

• Number of rent supplement units 

457 

 
 

Census data is not available 

 
 
 

51 

Goal 3: 

To ensure there are 

sufficient options for 

housing with supports to 

facilitate aging in place and 

for people who require 

supports to live with dignity 

and as independently as 

possible. 

• Increase in the supply of housing with 

supports, particularly for people with 

mental health issues and/or substance 

abuse issues and developmental 

disabilities 

• Increase of 20% in the supply of 

accessible units for frail seniors and 

persons with physical disabilities 

• Increase of 50% in the number of 

households who were at risk of 

homelessness who achieved housing 

stability 

• Number of supportive housing units built 

based on planning applications and 

funding applications 

• Number of accessible built based on 

residential building permits 

 
• Number of successful interventions in 

eviction prevention (Based on 

HPS/Coordinated Access data) 

• Number of households receiving housing 

allowances 

9 under construction- to be ready 2022  

 

3  

 
 

 

 

702 

 
 

183 (32 ongoing, 151 received for 1 year) 

Goal 4: 

Ensure a person-centred 

housing, homelessness and 

support system is in place 

where all housing and 

homelessness service 

• Coordinated access system with 

participation of all housing and 

homelessness service providers 

• Quality prioritization list 

• Comprehensive inventory of housing and 

homelessness services 

• Number of housing and support service 

providers participating in the coordinated 

access system 

 
• Prioritization list which is updated monthly 

(at a minimum) and includes data on 

housing and support needs 

We expect to be able to report on this next year once the 
BNL is fully up and running. 
 
 
The BNL was officially launched January 1, 2022.  The 
Implementation Plan has been submitted and ongoing work 
continues to operationalize and collect data for the BNL. 
Data will be available starting April 1, 2023. 
 

 

Page 23 of 36



HALDIMAND AND NORFOLK HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS PLAN 4  

 

Housing Goals Outcomes and Targets Measures Annual Progress 

providers are working in 

collaboration so that everyone 

who needs help is able to 

access it in a timely manner 

and functional zero end to 

homelessness is achieved. 

• No one is discharged into homelessness 

from an institutional setting, such as a 

hospital or correctional facility 

• Increase of 50% in the number of 

people/households who move from 

homelessness to permanent/long-term 

housing 

• Decrease of 50% in the number of 

households who return to homelessness 

from permanent housing 

• Number of people/households who are 

chronically homeless who move to 

permanent/long-term housing 

Data will be available when BNL data is 
available.  Currently in last fiscal year 55 households 
supported in moving from unsheltered or emergency 
shelter to long term housing, however chronicity of those 
supported not available. 
 

Identify Goals for 2022 • Centralized Intake / HHP Branding 

• Corporate training/lunch and learn 

 Have not been actioned to date 

Have not been actioned to date: plans to do so in Fall 2022 

 
GOAL 1 ACRONYM DEFINITIONS 
SFD - Single Family Dwelling 
SFD ACC – Single Family Dwelling Accessory Building 
SFD ADD – Single Family Dwelling Addition 
AFD ALT – Single Family Dwelling Alteration 
VCHNEW – Vacation Home New 
VCHALT – Vacation Home Alteration 
MRES – Multi-Residential 
MRES ACC – Multi-Residential Accessory Building 
MRES ALT – Multi-Residential Alteration 
COM ALT – Commercial Alteration 
BNL – By Name List 

Page 24 of 36



Dear Members, 
  
As the 2022-2023 Chair for the Boards of Health Section of the Association of Local public Health 
Agencies (alPHa),  I would like to introduce myself. I am Carmen McGregor, a second term Municipal 
Councillor with Chatham-Kent and a member of the Board of the Chatham-Kent Public Health Unit. I 
have represented the South Western Region PHUs at the alPHa Board since 2015 and I am a Past-
President of alPHa. If interested, my bio can be found on the alPHa website.  
  
I would also like to  share with you that our alPHa Board of Directors and Executive will continue to work 
on behalf of members on the key strategic initiatives to contribute to public health policy and to 
effectively liaise with our partners and stakeholders. Through alPHa’s strong, unified public health 
leadership voice, the 2022-2023 alPHa Board will advocate to remind Ontario’s decision makers of local 
public health’s enduring value.  
  
Should you wish to contact me I can be reached through Loretta Ryan, our Executive Director, at 
Loretta@alphaweb.org. I look forward to representing you over the next year. 
  
Sincerely,  
  
Carmen McGregor 
Chair 
Boards of Health Section 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Loretta Ryan, CAE, RPP 
Executive Director 
Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa)  
480 University Avenue, Suite 300 
Toronto, ON  M5G 1V2 
Tel: 416-595-0006 ext. 222 
Cell: 647-325-9594 
loretta@alphaweb.org  
www.alphaweb.org  
 

 
 
 

Page 25 of 36

https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fpage%2FBOH_SW&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7C75104a2b61524af115e108da5f666b71%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637927190745883956%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=W0y0VFRBd3vYUANIYxothcBA%2BAssWJizcUL3qIzQOps%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Loretta@alphaweb.org
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
http://www.alphaweb.org/
http://www.alphaweb.org/


 

 
July 15, 2022 
 
Hon. Sylvia Jones 
Deputy Premier and Minister of Health 
3rd Floor, 180 Broadway Ave. 
Orangeville, ON  L9W 1K3 
 
Dear Minister Jones: 
 
Re:  Letter of Support – Addressing Substance Use Harms 
 
On June 8, 2022, at a regular meeting of the Board for the Timiskaming Health Unit, the Board 
considered a staff report related to addressing substance use related harms including a letter from 
Simcoe-Muskoka District Health Unit endorsing a set of recommendations for the province of 
Ontario and provincial Ministry of Health to help address the escalating opioid crisis province-wide. 
 
Motion (#25R-2022) was passed which included endorsement of the Kingston, Frontenac, Lennox & 
Addington (KFLA) Drug Strategy Advisory Committee’s online petition to reduce the harms to those 
who use illicit drugs. In addition the motion included a call on the federal government to 
decriminalize the possession of all illicit drugs for personal use as an evidence-informed approach that 
acknowledges that substance use is a health issue and not one of morality, will power or criminal 
justice and, further that the federal government support the immediate scale up of prevention, harm 
reduction, and treatment services. 
 
The motion also included the following:  

That the Timiskaming Board of Health endorse the letter from Simcoe-Muskoka District Health 
Unit (SMDHU) to the Ontario Minister of Health (Appendix A) in response to the Opioid Crisis 
province-wide (recommendations 1 – 7), and that this be communicated in writing to the 
Ontario Minister of Health. 

 
The Timiskaming Health Unit fully supports the above recommendation, and thanks you for your 
consideration for expanding these provisions to all public health unit regions. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Carman Kidd, Board of Health Chair 
 
 
 

Page 26 of 36

https://www.timiskaminghu.com/websites/timiskaminghu.com/files/Board%20of%20Health/Item%2010a-Briefing%20Note%20For%20Action_Decriminalization%20of%20Substance%20Use_2022.pdf


Enclosure  
 
C: Michael A. Tibollo, Associate Minister of Mental Health and Addiction 

Hon. John Vanthof, MPP, Timiskaming-Cochrane 
Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
Kerry Schubert-Mackey and Tyler Twarowski Co-Chairs, Timiskaming Drug and Alcohol 
Strategy  
 

Page 27 of 36



 

 

March 16, 2022 
 
The Honourable Christine Elliott  
Minister of Health         
House of Commons 
Ottawa, ON K1A 0A6 
 
Dear Minister Elliott:  
 
Re: Response to the Opioid Crisis in Simcoe Muskoka and Ontario-wide 
 
On March 16, 2022, the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit (SMDHU) Board of Health endorsed a set 
of provincial recommendations to help address the ongoing and escalating opioid crisis experienced 
within Simcoe Muskoka and province-wide. Despite regional activities in response to the opioid crisis, 
there remains an urgent need for heightened provincial attention and action to promptly and 
adequately address the extensive burden of opioid-related deaths being experienced by those who use 
substances.  
 
In the 19 months of available data since the start of the pandemic (March 2020 to September 2021) 
there have been 245 opioid-related deaths in Simcoe Muskoka. This is nearly 70% higher than the 145 
opioid-related deaths in the 19 months prior to the start of the pandemic (August 2018 to February 
2020), when our communities were already struggling in the face of this crisis. The first nine months of 
2021 saw an opioid-related death rate more than 33% higher than the first nine months of 2020, 
suggesting the situation has not yet stabilized.  
 
As such, the SMDHU Board of Health urges your government to take the following actions: 
 

1. Create a multisectoral task force to guide the development of a robust provincial opioid 
response plan that will ensure necessary resourcing, policy change, and health and social system 
coordination.  

2. Expand access to evidence informed harm reduction programs and practices including lifting the 
provincial cap of 21 Consumption and Treatment Service (CTS) Sites, funding Urgent Public 
Health Needs Sites (UPHNS) and scaling up safer opioid supply options.  

3. Explore revisions to the current CTS model to address the growing trends of opioid poisoning 
amongst those who are using inhalation methods. 

4. Expand access to opioid agonist therapy for opioid use disorder through a range of settings (e.g. 
mobile outreach, primary care, emergency departments), and a variety of medication options. 

5. Provide a long-term financial commitment to create more affordable and supportive housing for 
people in need, including people with substance use disorders. 

6. Address the structural stigma and harms that discriminate against people who use drugs, 
through provincial support and advocacy to the Federal government to decriminalize personal 
use and possession of substances and ensure increased investments in health and social services 
at all levels. 

Page 28 of 36



7. Increase investments in evidence-informed substance use prevention and mental health 
promotion initiatives, that provide foundational support for the health, safety and well-being of 
individuals, families, and neighbourhoods, beginning from early childhood. 

8. Fund a fulltime position of a Drug Strategy Coordinator/Lead for the Simcoe Muskoka Opioid 
Strategy. 

 
The SMDHU Board of Health has endorsed these recommendations based on the well-demonstrated 
need for a coordinated, multi-sectoral approach that addresses the social determinants of health and 
recognizes the value of harm reduction strategies alongside substance use disorder treatment 
strategies, as part of the larger opioid crisis response. Evidence has shown that harm reduction 
strategies can prevent overdoses, save lives, and connect people with treatment and social services. 
Further, there is an urgent need to change the current Canadian drug policy to allow a public health 
response to substance use, through decriminalization of personal use and possession paired with 
avenues towards health and social services, as our Board called for in 2018. These recommendations 
collectively promote effective public health and safety measures to address the social and health harms 
associated with substance use. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
ORIGINAL Signed By: 
 
Anita Dubeau 
Board of Health Chair 
Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit 
 
cc: Associate Minister of Mental Health and Addictions 

Attorney General of Ontario 
Chief Medical Officer of Health  
Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
Ontario Health 
Ontario Boards of Health 
Members of Parliament in Simcoe Muskoka 
Members of Provincial Parliament in Simcoe Muskoka 
Mayors and Municipal Councils in Simcoe Muskoka 

Page 29 of 36



Page 1 of 7 
 

 

July 19, 2022 
  
This update is a tool that contains important information to keep alPHa's members apprised of the latest 
news in public health including provincial announcements, legislation, alPHa activities, correspondence, 
and events. Visit us at alphaweb.org. 

  
                                                             

      
Future of Public Health Letter  
  
alPHa has sent correspondence to the new Minister of Health, Hon. Sylvia Jones, alPHa Letter - The 
Future of Public Health. The July 18, 2022, letter provides several documents (including Resolution A22-

2, Public Health Restructuring/Modernization & COVID-19) that give an overview of alPHa’s positions and 
principles that we hope will be carefully considered as Ontario’s public health system is reviewed and 

strengthened in the wake of the emergency phase of the COVID-19 response.  
 

 

2022 alPHa Conference, AGM proceedings and Resolutions  
  

 
  
Thank you again to all of the alPHa members who participated in the 2022 alPHa Conference, AGM, and 
Pre-Conference Workshop. The proceedings are now posted (log-in required). 
  
The gift card winners for the conference are being announced. Congratulations to Jim Neil from KFL&A 

who won the door prize and Dr. Larry Oehm from SMDHU who won the prize for filling out the post-

conference survey.  
 

 

Page 30 of 36

https://www.alphaweb.org/default.aspx
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_PH_Restructuring_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_PH_Restructuring_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/global_engine/download.aspx?fileid=C6233955-86B5-43B7-8A43-D9988A66FAE0


Page 2 of 7 
 

Leader to Leader – A Message from the alPHa President - July 2022 
  

 
  
alPHa’s 2022-2023 Board and the alPHa Executive have indeed ‘hit the ground running’ since taking office 

in mid-June. 
  
On behalf of the alPHa membership, your alPHa Board has sent congratulations to the Hon. Sylvia Jones 

upon her appointment and new mandate as Ontario’s Deputy Premier and Minister of Health. Most 
importantly, alPHa has respectfully advised Minister Jones there is ample time for careful review and full 

consultation to inform recommendations that will reinforce Ontario’s locally based public health system, 
strengthen its contributions to the effectiveness of health care, and ensure better health outcomes for all 

Ontarians, in both ordinary and extraordinary times. This was accompanied by supporting documents that 

outline who we are, what we do and why it matters; our positions and recommendations related to 
system foundations, requirements for resourcing and renewal; and a compendium of the 

recommendations. 
  
As the unified voice of Ontario’s local public health leadership, alPHa is pleased to share these materials 

and recommendations with Minister Jones at this pivotal time for the Province of Ontario and to welcome 
opportunities to meet with her and her staff. 
  
Wishing you a safe, refreshing, and rejuvenating summer!  
  
Trudy 
  
Trudy Sachowski 
  

‘A leader is one who knows the way, goes the way and shows the way.’ 
 

 

alPHa Correspondence 
  

 
  

Page 31 of 36



Page 3 of 7 
 

Through policy analysis, collaboration, and advocacy, alPHa’s members and staff act to promote public 
health policies that form a strong foundation for the improvement of health promotion and protection, 

disease prevention, and surveillance services in all of Ontario’s communities. Below are submissions that 
have been sent in since the last newsletter. A complete online library is available here. 
  
alPHa Letter - President & CEO, PHO  
July 18, 2022 letter from the alPHa ED welcoming Dr. Michael Sherar as the new President and CEO of 

Public Health Ontario.  
  
alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-5 - Harm Reduction  
July 18, 2022 letter to the Minister of Health that introduces alPHa Resolution A22-5, Indigenous Harm 

Reduction - A Wellness Journey.  
  
alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-4 - Opioids  
July 18, 2022 alPHa letter to the Minister of Health that introduces Resolution A22-4, Priorities for 
Provincial Action on the Drug/Opioid Poisoning Crisis in Ontario.  
  
alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-3 - Cooling Towers  
July 18, 2022 alPHa letter to the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing that introduces Resolution A22-

3, which calls for a provincial cooling tower registry for the public health management of legionella 
outbreaks.  
  
alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-1 - Racism & Health  
July 18, 2022 letter to the Minister of Health that introduces Resolution A22-1, Race-Based Inequities in 

Health. 
  
alPHa Letter - The Future of Public Health  
July 18, 2022 letter to the Minister of Health that provides several documents (Including Resolution A22-

2, Public Health Restructuring/Modernization & COVID-19) that give an overview of alPHa’s positions and 

principles that we hope will be carefully considered as Ontario’s public health system is reviewed and 
strengthened in the wake of the emergency phase of the COVID-19 response. Note: This is a follow up to 

the welcome letter sent to the new Minister on June 27, 2022. 
  
alPHa Letter - 2022 Resolutions  
July 18, 2022 letter from the President of the Association of Local Public Health Agencies that introduces 
five resolutions that were passed by our members at the 2022 Annual General Meeting.  
 

Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) 2022 Annual General Meeting and Conference 

 
  
Next month, alPHa President, Trudy Sachowski, CEO, Southwestern Public Health, Cynthia St. John, Dr. 

Lawrence Loh, former MOH for Peel, and Keith Egli, Chair of Ottawa Public Health Board of Health, will be 
in a panel at the AMO 2022 Annual General Meeting and Conference. The session is called ‘Public Health 

COVID Learnings- informing future modernization,’ and will discuss “before the government embarks 

again on modernizing the public health system, we need a better understanding of what worked well, 
what didn’t, and where improvements can be made. This session will contribute to the growing local 

Page 32 of 36

https://www.alphaweb.org/page/alPHa_Letters
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_PHO_CEO_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_A22-5_Indigenous_HR_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_A22-4_Opioids_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_A22-3_Legionella_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_A22-1_Racism_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_PH_Restructuring_180722.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_Welcome_Minister_270622.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_2022_Resolutions_180722.pdf


Page 4 of 7 
 

COVID learnings and insights on managing the challenges of a tenacious pandemic with an eye on the 
horizon.” The moderator for the session is Monika Turner, Director of Policy, AMO.  
  
Are you an alPHa member planning on going to the AMO conference, working on briefings for Board of 

Health members who are attending, or participating as a municipal councillor in a delegation to a 

Minister? Many alPHa members are using the following alPHa resources to help prepare their key 
messages on local public health: 
  

 alPHa Resolution: Public Health Restructuring/Modernization & COVID-19 :A22-
2_PH_Restructuring.pdf (ymaws.com) 

 alPHa’s Public Health Resilience in Ontario Clearing the Backlog, Resuming Routine Programs, 
and Maintaining an Effective Covid-19 Response. report and executive summary 

 Pre-Budget Consultations 
 alPHa 2022 Elections Primer  
 alPHa’s submissions on PH Modernization, including the Statement of Principles 
 “What is Public Health?”  

 

 

Boards of Health: Shared Resources 
  

 
  
A resource page is available on alPHa's website for Board of Health members to facilitate the sharing of 

and access to orientation materials, best practices, by-laws, resolutions, and other resources. If you have 
a best practice, by-law, or any other resource you would like to make available, please send a file or a 

link with a brief description to gordon@alphaweb.org for posting in the appropriate library. 
  
Resources available on the alPHa website include: 
  

 Orientation Manual for Board of Health (To be revised Fall 2022)  
 Review of Board of Health Liability (PowerPoint presentation) 
 Governance Toolkit (To be revised Fall 2022)  
 Risk Management for Health Units 
 Healthy Rural Communities Toolkit 
 The Ontario Public Health Standards 
 Public Appointee Role and Governance Overview 
 Ontario Boards of Health by Region 
 List of Units sorted by Municipality 
 List of Municipalities sorted by Health Unit 

 

 

 

Page 33 of 36

https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F9DD68D5D-CEFD-443B-B2B5-E76AE0CC6FCB%2FA22-2_PH_Restructuring.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Z2hH1qw%2FJWbgrPJXEVHyW237boEKwbmMMETA3SToP%2FY%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F9DD68D5D-CEFD-443B-B2B5-E76AE0CC6FCB%2FA22-2_PH_Restructuring.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Z2hH1qw%2FJWbgrPJXEVHyW237boEKwbmMMETA3SToP%2FY%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9%2FalPHa_PH_Resilience_Report_Final_Jan2022.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sh%2BEM%2FdWT0%2BJiB12HoWnoHkAZl%2BgNWOWkjfPHXn%2FngA%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9%2FalPHa_PH_Resilience_Report_Exec_Sum_Jan2022.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7CyU%2FrnwzN%2FlZDazv5dP1Fd%2BrTg3gQlriJkCPY5v4A0%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9%2FalPHa_Deputation_SCEFA_Transcript_190122.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=4yNzrCzTO%2BqR%2BOvcD5SIWqX5rMMZNU810MlqeovR9GE%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9%2FalPHa_Election_Primer_2022.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7V7xVz5AH9oolsOa%2FumcdYzLJLJMmFdjsNUTjvFtDKU%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fpage%2FPHR_Responses&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=dtoZBDGsQTVuwS4TZGA25N4epRUUQCwDYJcfrGBrLQg%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9%2F2019_alPHa_Public_Health_Principles_FINAL.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=EZ5olGlgbivr7fsrVoR5H14T20XwczNXo14ogAb5N3A%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D%2Ftrifold_brochure_alpha.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=h7ayx8aBOfCJzsWkN%2B3GmDvq4G0qV31T%2BbI91pS0uXk%3D&reserved=0
https://www.alphaweb.org/page/BOH_Shared_Resources
mailto:gordon@alphaweb.org
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/boh_file/boh_orientation_manual.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/boh_file/board_liability_paper_2018.pdf
https://alphaweb.site-ym.com/global_engine/download.aspx?fileid=575E6376-849F-45A0-BC83-7003F04258F6
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/boh_file/alpha_boh_governance_toolkit.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/page/RiskMgmt
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/docs/healthy_rural_communities_to.pdf
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/default.aspx?/index.html
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D/PAS_Appointee_Orientation_090819.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D/Health_Unit_By_Municipality.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D/Municipality_By_Health_Unit.pdf


Page 5 of 7 
 

Public Health Ontario 

 
Public Health Ontario (PHO) has recently announced an open call for proposals to support research or 

evaluation projects focusing on the consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic in Ontario. This year, to 
facilitate timely public health unit research and evaluation activities, Locally Driven Collaborative Projects 

(LDCP) funding will be used to fund two to three projects (up to $125,000 per project) that fit within one 

of the three following priority areas: 
  

 Public health innovations  
 Public health programs impacted by the pandemic 
 Understanding pandemic impacts on mental health 

  
For full application instructions, examples of project ideas and evaluation criteria, please see the Call for 

Proposals. 
  
Public Health Ontario Resources 
  
New Routine Monkeypox Epidemiological Report 

 
PHO’s new Monkeypox in Ontario report outlines up-to-date information on:  

       confirmed and probable/suspected case counts 
 case counts broken down by public health unit, gender, and age 
 reported symptoms  

 

The report is published twice per week on Tuesdays and Fridays on PHO’s monkeypox webpage.  
  
New Weekly COVID-19 Epidemiology Summary 
  
Starting June 16, PHO transitioned to weekly COVID-19 surveillance reporting and released a new, 

comprehensive weekly epidemiological summary: COVID-19 in Ontario with the aim of providing an 
overview of key trends in COVID-19. This report is published weekly on Thursdays on PHO’s data and 

surveillance webpage. 

 
Variants of Concern  
  

 SARS-CoV-2 Omicron Variant Sub-Lineages BA.4 and BA.5: Evidence and Risk Assessment 
 SARS-CoV-2 Omicron Variant BA.2 and Sublineages of BA.2: Evidence and Risk Assessment 
 SARS-CoV-2 Genomic Surveillance in Ontario, June 17, 2022  
  

Response and Recovery 
  

 Focus On: Response and Recovery from Public Health Emergencies: Assessment Activities 
  
Upcoming Events 
  
July 20: PHO Webinar: Catch-Up of Routine and School Based Immunization 

Page 34 of 36

https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Felink.clickdimensions.com%2Fc%2F7%%2FhMyFfR7-Dd_Qgrpy0jD-3g&data=05%7C01%7CJessica.Hopkins%40oahpp.ca%7Cc06b034154d74f7172bc08da68fe0f7f%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637937737636442586%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1Yc%2FIM0Cvf8A1fbCBazGftfsza0Qa%2F4gsH0yDoq%2Bcgc%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Felink.clickdimensions.com%2Fc%2F7%%2FhMyFfR7-Dd_Qgrpy0jD-3g&data=05%7C01%7CJessica.Hopkins%40oahpp.ca%7Cc06b034154d74f7172bc08da68fe0f7f%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637937737636442586%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1Yc%2FIM0Cvf8A1fbCBazGftfsza0Qa%2F4gsH0yDoq%2Bcgc%3D&reserved=0
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/M/2022/monkeypox-episummary.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Felink.clickdimensions.com%2Fc%2F7%2FeyJhaSI6ODE4Nzc0NDEsImUiOiJhbmRyZXcuZ3JlZW5Ab2FocHAuY2EiLCJyaSI6ImNvbnRhY3QtNWExNzMyNzZhZGMzZTYxMWI2M2EwMDUwNTY5ZTAwMDktYTMwMzk3ZGYyOTRjNDM5M2EzYjJlNmU2NDgzYTQ2YmEiLCJycSI6IjAyLWIyMjE4MS0wNzNjNThjOTg2ZDk0YWM1OGE2NjdjYTQxYmQ5OWMxNSIsInBoIjpudWxsLCJtIjpmYWxzZSwidWkiOiIxIiwidW4iOiIiLCJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cucHVibGljaGVhbHRob250YXJpby5jYS9lbi9EaXNlYXNlcy1hbmQtQ29uZGl0aW9ucy9JbmZlY3Rpb3VzLURpc2Vhc2VzL1ZlY3Rvci1Cb3JuZS1ab29ub3RpYy1EaXNlYXNlcy9Nb25rZXlwb3g_X2NsZGVlPTJVMFNVVkhDWldTRlhwblA0RnhyZ2xjODRBMWlkMGV2Ry13Z08zUW90bXlhWjZkSC1nckJaekFGdFJ4QTBnM0smcmVjaXBpZW50aWQ9Y29udGFjdC01YTE3MzI3NmFkYzNlNjExYjYzYTAwNTA1NjllMDAwOS1hMzAzOTdkZjI5NGM0MzkzYTNiMmU2ZTY0ODNhNDZiYSZlc2lkPTkxNzcxNDYyLWJjZjctZWMxMS04MTczLTAwNTA1NmFkNjFiNiJ9%2FzYitbcuSmHz08EBVF-yV2w&data=05%7C01%7Candrew.green%40oahpp.ca%7C50eb28ddaa984c6e331308da5a9ecf4a%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637921935381747594%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=E6ODaTer1rJPQAhPJ3NQQSzF2bBzdaTQ51HXSWkehe4%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Felink.clickdimensions.com%2Fc%2F7%%2FyyIgmD86xkcLn6H2qJ9Z_A&data=05%7C01%7Candrew.green%40oahpp.ca%7C50eb28ddaa984c6e331308da5a9ecf4a%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637921935381747594%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=c0lk70Sw7hgxA8IgvNPikaMaIfAEZuHekrf%2FERDUF8Y%3D&reserved=0
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Infectious-Disease/COVID-19-Data-Surveillance/COVID-19-Data-Tool?tab=summary
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Infectious-Disease/COVID-19-Data-Surveillance/COVID-19-Data-Tool?tab=summary
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/voc/2022/04/omicron-variant-sub-lineage-ba4-ba5.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/voc/2022/06/omicron-variant-ba2-risk-assessment-june-14.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/focus-on-response-recovery-from-public-health-emergenices.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.eventbrite.ca/e/pho-webinar-catch-up-of-routine-and-school-based-immunization-tickets-369241389937


Page 6 of 7 
 

Upcoming DLSPH Events and Webinars 
  

 
  

 July 27-28, 2022 10th UCG Edition on Diabetes and Endocrinology Conference 
 
COVID-19 Update 
  
As part of the response to COVID-19, alPHa continues to represent the public health system and work 

with key stakeholders. “NOTE: In alignment with the wind-down of provincial emergency response 

measures and the shift to managing COVID-19 through routine operations, the ministry’s daily COVID-19 
Situation Report will no longer be distributed after June 10 2022. COVID-19 data will continue to be 

reported on the Ministry of Health website and through the Public Health Ontario’s COVID-19 data tool.” 
  

 Visit the Ministry of Health's page on guidance for the health sector  
 View the Ministry's website on the status of COVID-19 cases 
 Go to Public Health Ontario's COVID-19 website 
 Visit the Public Health Agency of Canada's COVID-19 website 

alPHa’s recent COVID-19 related submissions can be found here 
 

 

Update on Canada’s Healthy Eating Strategy 
  
  

 

 

On June 30, 2022, Health Canada announced new nutrition labelling regulations for packaged foods. By 

January 2026, a new symbol featuring a magnifying glass will appear on the front of most packaged 
foods that contain more than 15% of the recommended daily intake of saturated fat, sugars and/or 

sodium and will complement the Nutrition Facts table displayed on the back. Front-of-package nutrition 
labelling is a key part of Health Canada's Healthy Eating Strategy, which aims to improve the food 

environment in Canada, make it easier for Canadians to make informed food choices, and lower the risk 

of diet-related chronic diseases. alPHa has communicated its  support for the Strategy, with a focus on 
the pledge to restrict marketing of unhealthy food and beverages to children as per alPHa Resolutions 

A08-13 and A09-1. alPHa’s latest letter (March 4, 2022) on the subject can be viewed here. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35 of 36

https://www.dlsph.utoronto.ca/event/10th-ucg-edition-on-diabetes-and-endocrinology-conference/
https://covid-19.ontario.ca/data
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Infectious-Disease/COVID-19-Data-Surveillance/COVID-19-Data-Tool?tab=summary
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/coronavirus/2019_guidance.aspx
https://www.ontario.ca/page/2019-novel-coronavirus?_ga=2.178115365.1614363902.1583935912-1448909452.1583935912
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/diseases-and-conditions/infectious-diseases/respiratory-diseases/novel-coronavirus
https://www.canada.ca/en/public-health/services/diseases/2019-novel-coronavirus-infection.html
https://www.alphaweb.org/page/alPHa_Letters
https://www.newswire.ca/news-releases/government-of-canada-unveils-new-front-of-package-nutrition-symbol-800108024.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/services/health/food-nutrition/healthy-eating.html
https://alphaweb.site-ym.com/resource/collection/72641CF2-61B4-4F66-AC0F-F369797C9137/alPHa_resolution_A08-13_BanOnCommercialAdsForKids13Under.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/91C17F8A-7362-470C-813D-821BC803AA04/A09-1_Advertising_Ban_Children.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/D927A028-023E-4413-B438-86101BEFB7B7/alPHa_Letter_Healthy_Eating_Strategy_040322.pdf


Page 7 of 7 
 

RRFSS for summer 2022  
  

 
  
Data is available to HUs approximately 10 weeks after data collection –giving current local data which is 
essential for HUs particularly given the delay of the CCHS data.  
  
There is still opportunity to collect 2022 RRFSS data and customizable budget packages can be created. 
For further information contact: Lynne Russell, RRFSS Coordinator: lynnerussell@rrfss.ca. To read more, 

click here. 
  

 

It is TRAVAX Renewal Time! 
  

 
  

It is renewal time for Travax (Travel Health Information Website) subscription licenses for alPHa 
members who have existing subscriptions, and it is also an opportunity for Public Health Units to sign up 

and take advantage of the special rate for alPHa members. For more information, members can visit 

www.shoreland.com. To obtain the alPHa member discount, please contact Maggie Liefert, Shoreland, 
Inc. at 703-399-5424. 
  
  

 
News Releases 
  
The most up to date news releases from the Government of Ontario can be accessed here 
 
 

Association of Local Public Health Agencies 

480 University Avenue, Suite 300 | Toronto ON | M5G 1V2  
416-595-0006 | www.alphaweb.org | info@alphaweb.org 

  

 

Page 36 of 36

mailto:lynnerussell@rrfss.ca
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D/RRFSS_eNEWS_Summer_2022.pdf
http://www.shoreland.com/
https://news.ontario.ca/en
http://www.alphaweb.org/
mailto:info@alphaweb.org
https://twitter.com/PHAgencies
https://www.linkedin.com/company/association-of-local-public-health-agencies

	Agenda
	4.1. Post-Meeting Minutes - HSSAC_Jun27_2022 - English.pdf
	7.2.2. 2021-2022 Healthy Babies Healthy Children Annual Reconciliation Report - CS-22-067.pdf
	7.2.2. Attachment 1.pdf
	7.3.1. 10 Year Housing and Homelessness Plan Update- 2021 - HSS-22-029.pdf
	7.3.1. HSS 20-05 -Reporting on Progress 2021.pdf
	9.1. Message from the Board of Health Chair.pdf
	9.2. Letter-Addressing Substance Use Harms (Jun 2022).pdf
	9.2. 220316 SMDHU Opioid_Crisis_Advocacy_Letter_Updated.pdf
	9.3. alPHa Information Break- July 2022.pdf

